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DEPOSITION

Whereupon,

AMY GARMON
was called as awitness, having been first duly sworn to
speak the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth, was examined and testified as follows:

EXAMINATION
BY MS. WALKER:

Q Ms. Garmon, | guess| have been chosen to

start. Weall havejust a couple of questions.
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BY MR. WALKER:
Q If you can look at --
MR. MEFFERT: It'sat -- Tab 1 isthe RFA.
BY MR. WALKER:

Q If you could look at page 24.

A Okay.

Q And would you agree with methat paragraph
seven, starting on page 24, defines what the applicant
hasto show in terms of site control?

A Yes

11 | am Karen Walker, and Larry Sellersismy haw |11 Q And that would include a requirement that the
12| partner, and werepresent Rosedale Holdings, H& H 12| contract hasaterm that doesn't expire before a date
13| Development and Brookstonein this matter. We 13| that's six months after the application deadline, right?
14| understand from the questionsthat were asked of Mr. |14| A Yes.
15| Reecy that you are the staff per son that was designated |15 Q Okay. And theapplication --
16| tolook at site control issueswith respect tothisRFA, |16 (Discussion off therecord.)
17| the medium and small county RFAs; isthat right? 17| BY MS. WALKER:
18| A Yes. 18 Q Allright. I think we areback on therecord.
19 Q Anddoyou haveacopy of theRFA in front of |19 So, Ms. Garmon, we wer e talking about the
20| you? 20| language on page 24 of the RFA that saysthat an
21 A No. 21| eligible contract hasto be onewith a term that doesn't
22 Q No. Okay. Wéll, let mejust -- 22| expire, adatethat issix months after the application
23 MR. MEFFERT: Hereisone. 23| deadline, right?
24 MR. WALKER: Okay. 24| A Yes
25 25 Q Isthat something you looked at when you were
Page 8 Page 9
1| reviewing applicationsto determine whether the 1 A Yes
2| application met the site control requirements of the 2 Q And thisis Attachment 8 to the Summer set
3| RFA? 3| application, right?
4 A Yes 4 A Yes
5 Q And did you look at that issue with respect to 5 Q Anditincludesan Assignment and Assumption
6| the Summer set application? 6| Agreement and areal estate purchase agreement. Were
7 A Yes 7| there any other documentsyou recall reviewing relating
8 MS. WALKER: Did we mark -- oh, no we are not 8| to site control?
9 going to mark the RFA. Let'smark thisas-- can 9 A No, | don't recall if there were any others.
10 we do one set of deposition exhibits? |Isthat 10| | think thisisit.
11 okay? 11 Q Okay. And when you conducted your review of
12 MR. MENTON: That'sfine. 12| the site control issues, did you look the language on
13 MR. WALKER: Okay. So if you can hand one of 13| page four, paragraph (g) on page four, Closing, that
14|  thoseto the court reporter. 14| shows a date that closing must occur no later than
15 (Whereupon, Exhibit No. 3 was marked for 15| April 1, 2013?
16| identification.) 16 A Yes
17| BY MR. WALKER: 17 Q And soyou recognized that date?
18 Q Ms. Garmon, have you had a chanceto review 18 A Yes.
19| what's been marked as Deposition Exhibit 3? 19 Q And you would agree with methat that dateis
20 A Yes 20| lessthan six months after the deadline for submission
21 Q Areyou familiar with thisdocument? 21| of applications, right?
22| A Yes. 22| A ltis.
23 Q Would you agreethat thisisthe documentation |23 Q Okay. Sothat datewould not meet the site
24| that Summerset provided in itsapplication in response |24 | control requirements, right?
25| to the site control requirements? 25 A Right.
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1 Q Okay. And did you look at the extensions also 1| date was a typo on anything other than the contract
2| in the agreement? 2| effective date?
3 A Yes 3 A | amsorry, repest it, please.
4 Q And even with the extensions extending those 4 Q Did you baseyour determination that the
5| from April 1st, 2013, those still would not meet the 5| April 1st, 2013 date was a typo, did you base that on
6| site control requirements of the RFA, right? 6| any information other than the contract effective date?
7 A Right. 71 A No.
8 Q Sohow, then, did you find that Summer -- did 8 Q And | am assuming you had no communication
9| you find that Summer set met the site control 9| with the buyer or seller to ask whether it wasatypo,
10| requirements? 10| right?
11 A Yes. 11 A No.
12 Q Okay. And how did you find that based on the |12 Q Okay. And you would agree with me, would you
13| closing date being April 1, 2013? 13| not, that Florida Housing isn't a party to the contract;
14| A Thecontract provided is-- the effective date 14| right?
15| was August 28th, 2013. 15 A Right.
16 Q Okay. 16 Q Sodid you then basically just rewritethat
17 A And because the contract wasn't in effect 17| provision of the contract so that it would say April 1,
18| until August 28th, 2013, | determined that the April 1st 18| 2014, in your mind?
19| date had to be atypo. 19 MR. MENTON: Object to the form.
20 Q Did you makethat determination alone, or was |20 THE WITNESS: Dol still answer?
21| anyone elseinvolved in making that determination? 21 MR. MEFFERT: You can answer.
22 A | did consult with legal. 22 THE WITNESS: Oh. Yes, in my mind, |
23 Q Did you consult with anyone else? 23 determined that because the contract wasn't evenin
24| A No. Lega counsdl. 24 effect until August, that the closing date being --
25 Q And did you base your determination that the 25 you know, being before the contract was even
Page 12 Page 13
1 effective didn't really make sense. 1 A That'sit.
2| BY MR. WALKER: 2 Q Okay. And | know that thereal estate
3 Q Soin conducting your sitereview analysis, 3| purchase agreement is an attachment to the application,
4| you read that date as April 1, 2014, even though it said 4| right?
5| April 1, 20137 5 A Yes
6 A Yes 6 Q Butit'snot actually part of the application
7 MR. MENTON: Object to the form. 7| form,isit?
8| BY MR. WALKER: 8 A Correct.
9 Q And did you consider that sometype of 9 Q Sothat wastypoin an agreement, right?
10| irregularity, or did you make a determination that 10 A Yes
11| something needed to bewaived, or did you just makea |11 Q Not atypoin theapplication itself?
12| determination it was a typo? 12 A Right.
13 A | made adetermination that it was atypo. 13 Q Haveyou looked at any documentation since you
14 Q Soyou did not make a determination it wasa 14| made the determination that Summer set met site control
15| minor irregularity that needed to be waived? 15| relating to this particular issue?
16 A No. 16 A No.
17 Q Doyou know if anyone else made a 17 Q Ms. Garmon, | think you said that you read
18| determination that that day wasa minor irregularity 18| that provision to be April -- the dateto be April 1<t,
19| that needed to be waived? 19| 2014; right?
20 A | don't know. 20 A Yes
21 Q Wasanyoneedseinvolved in adetermination of |21 Q Isthereareason you read it asthat date and
22| whether the application met site control other than you? |22| not some other date?
23 A | made my determination and then discussed the 23| A Thefirst part of the date being April 1st
24| closing date issue with legal counsel. 24| was, in my mind, was not an issue. It wasthe year.
25 Q Andthat'sit? 25| And because, again, the contract was not effective until
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1| August of 2013, | determined that it could not have -- 1l A Yes
2| the closing date could not have been April 1st, 2013, 2|  Q Robert Pierce?
3| prior to the contract even being in effect. 3] A Yes
4 Q Could it have been April 1st, 20157 4 MR. DONALDSON: Okay. That'sall | have.
5 A It could have. 5 EXAMINATION
6 Q Or 20167 6| BY MR. MENTON:
7 A But | wasn't going to go that far out with the 7 Q Just acouple of questions.
8| date. 8 Good morning, Ms. Garmon. Wemet briefly. My
9 Q Could it have been something other than April? | 9| nameis Steve Menton. | represent Summerset, and | just
10 A Inmy mind, no. 10| want to follow up on a couple of questionsthat Ms.
11 Q Butyou don't know what the partiesintended, |11| Walker asked you.
12| right? 12 In terms of you looking at the date asbeing
13 A | don't know. 13| April 1st, 2014, as opposed to 2015, 2016. If it had
14 Q Youjust basically looked at the date, figured 14| been 2015, 2016, 2017, would that have impacted upon
15| it was probably an error and then assumed what the  |15| your determination of site control?
16| correction of that error would be? 16| A Ifithadlisted 2015 in here?
171 A Yes. 171 Q Yes
18 Q Okay. Without any information other than 18| A It would have met the -- if it had listed 2015
19| what'sin attachment eight? 19| asthe closing date, it would have met the requirements.
20 A Correct. 20 Q Andsoif it wasany date after 2013, which
21 MS. WALKER: | don't have anything else. 21| wastheyear that the agreement was entered into, then
22 EXAMINATION 22| it would meet the requirements of site control?
23| BY MR. DONALDSON: 23] A Yes.
24 Q Ms. Garmon, just onequestion. You said you |24 Q Okay. Intermsof the agreement itself, Ms.
25| consulted with legal staff? 25| Walker asked you whether that was part of theform --
Page 16 Page 17
1| theapplication form? 1| Assignment and Assumption Agreement. Did you look at
2 A Uh-huh. 2| that document also in determining site control?
3 Q Did you consider that agreement to be part of 3 A Yes
4| the application that was submitted on behalf of 4 Q Okay. And did you notice that that document
5| Summer set? 5| saysthere haven't been any amendments or modifications
6 A An attachment to the application. 6| tothereal estate purchase agreement?
7 Q And sothat was part of the application, | 70 A Yes
8| would suspect? 8 Q Okay. And so asof that date, there had been
9 A Yes. 9| no changein the April 1st, 2013, datein the purchase
10 MR. MENTON: Okay. That'sall the questions| 10| and sale agreement?
11 have. Thank you. 11| A Yes
12 MS. WALKER: | have afew followup, can | ask 12| Q Okay. And that was-- | think the Assignment
13 a couple followup questions please? 13| and Assumption Agreement was dated October 15th, which
14 MR. MEFFERT: Sure. Yes. 14| wastwo days befor e the application deadline, right?
15 FURTHER EXAMINATION 15| A Yes.
16| BY MR. WALKER: 16 Q Soasof theapplication deadline, the
17 Q Ms. Garmon, would you agree with mea 17| information that Florida Housing had wasthat the
18] contract, areal estate purchase agreement isa legal 18| closing date in the purchase, in thereal estate
19| document? 19| purchase agreement, still said April 1st, 2013?
20 A Yes 20 MR. MENTON: Object to the form.
21 Q Andthethat FloridaHousing can't changethe |21 THEWITNESS: Yes.
22| termsof that legal document? 22 MR. WALKER: Okay. That'sit.
23 A Yes 23 MR. MENTON: Thank you very much.
24 Q Andifyoulook at thefirst page underneath, 24 MR. WALKER: |IsGary -- we keep forgetting
25| | think it was cover page of Attachment 8, thereisthe |25 Gary.
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1 MR. MEFFERT: Gary. 1
2 MR. COHEN: Nothing else. | am good. 2 CERTIFICATE OF OATH
3 MR. MEFFERT: Thanks. | have nothing else. 3
4 Thank you. 4| STATE OF FLORIDA )
5 (Whereupon, the deposition was concluded at 5| COUNTY OF LEON )
6| 11:29 am.) 6
7 7
8 8 I, the undersigned authority, certify that the
9 9| above-named witness personally appeared before me and
10 10| was duly sworn.
11 11
12 12
13 13 WITNESS my hand and official seal this 3rd day
14 14| of March, 2014.
15 15
16 16
17 17
18 18
19 19 ,
20 20 COMMISSON L#.%E 2307
s o RS B2 cerorren
(850) 894-0828
22 22
23 23
24 24
25 25
Page 20
1 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
: | SBIRISHBR )
4 I, DEBRA R. KRICK, Professional Court
5| Reporter, certify that the foregoing proceedings were
6| taken before me at the time and place therein
7| designated; that my shorthand notes were thereafter
8| translated under my supervision; and the foregoing
9| pages, numbered 6 through 18, are atrue and correct
10| record of the aforesaid proceedings.
11 | further certify that | am not arelative,
12| employee, attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor
13| am | arelative or employee of any of the parties
14| attorney or counsel connected with the action, nor am |
15| financially interested in the action.
16 DATED this 3rd day of March, 2014.
17
18
19
20 RA X1 %
21 N #EE212307
” %@;@mm RepoRTER
»3 (850) 894-0
24
25
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